
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 

Tuesday, February 9, 2016         City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.          16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• King County Presentation on Tri-City Community Van Program (Tricia Barbachan and Anne

Bruskland – 20 minutes)

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson)
C-2. Approve Consultant Contract for Covington Community Park Phase II Design Services (Newton)

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Extending Moratorium on Medical Marijuana

Production and Processing Facilities, Dispensaries, and Collective Gardens for Six Months (Hart)

NEW BUSINESS 
2. Appointments to Parks and Recreation Commission (Council)
3. Discuss Commissioner Conduct (Council)

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
• To Discuss the Acquisition of Real Estate Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)

ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  February 9, 2016 

SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #33571-33625, including ACH payments in the 
amount of $221,972.22, dated January 22, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004818649-
1004818664 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of $175,925.54, dated 
January 29, 2016. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 

ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #33571-33625, including ACH 
payments in the amount of $221,972.22, dated January 22, 2016; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004818649-1004818664 inclusive, plus employee 
direct deposits in the amount of $175,925.54, dated January 29, 2016. 
. 

1 of 67



2 of 67



3 of 67



4 of 67



5 of 67



6 of 67



7 of 67



8 of 67



9 of 67



10 of 67



11 of 67



12 of 67



13 of 67



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: February 9, 2016 

 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR 

PARK DESIGN FOR COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2.    
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Professional Services Agreement  
2. Scope of Work and Fees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
Covington Community Park (CCP) Phase I construction was completed June 2013.  The 60% 
level of both Phases 2 and 3 design and Phase 2 cost estimate were completed in May 2014. Due 
to increased grant funding, Phase 2 was expanded, reviewed and approved by City Council in 
December 2015. With construction slated for 2017, the next phase of work includes advancing 
the existing design plans along with required permit applications.  Program elements for Phase 2 
include, but are not limited to, surface parking for approximately 128 parking stalls; children’s 
play area (partial); fitness area with exercise stations; (1) tennis court; structures including 
concessions/comfort station, community stage with green roof, (1) large shelter, (2) small 
shelters; wetland mitigation; utility infrastructure; partial frontage improvements along 180th 
Avenue SE; and soft surface and paved connections to existing trails. 
 
The contract Scope of Work includes provision of professional design services including site 
reconnaissance and verification of conditions, advance park design from 60% to 90% 
construction documents, and 100% bid documents, contractor bidding assistance, cost 
estimating, identify additive alternatives, and design review with City staff, Parks and Recreation 
Commission, Arts Commission and design review and approval by City Council. In addition, 
city building and local permits and wetland mitigation permits with King County and Army Corp 
of Engineers will be completed. The attached contract with MacLeod Reckord will provide the 
services necessary to complete the work mentioned above.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
1. Amend the scope of work for this phase of design. 
2. Do not approve any scope of work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The cost of the design contract is $462,162, plus an additional 10% contingency, making the 
total amount payable under the contract as $508,946. A 2016 Decision Card was approved 
addressing these projected costs. Funding sources include State of Washington Department of 
Commerce grant, two Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) grants and required matching 

14 of 67



city funds.  The funding sources are reimbursement grants, so for cash flow purposes, an 
interfund load may be required.  
 

 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance            Resolution      X   Motion            Other 
 

Council member ___________ moves, Council member ____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between 
the City of Covington and MacLeod Reckord, in substantial from as 
that attached hereto, to complete design documents for the City’s 
Covington Community Park Phase 2.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney, Parks & Recreation Director 

 

15 of 67



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 1 
Updated 12-13-12 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT  

ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 10th day of February, 2016, by and between 
the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and MacLeod Reckord, an 
architectural/engineering services consultant (“Consultant”).  

RECITALS 

A. The City seeks the services of an architectural/engineering consultant to perform design services
on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 

B. The Consultant has the qualifications and experience necessary to provide said services; and

C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and

D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under which the Consultant
will perform said services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth herein, the City 
and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby engage the Consultant and the
Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the services more particularly described herein.

2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the Consultant shall perform the
services described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Services”), in a
manner consistent with the accepted practices for similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the
time period prescribed by the City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In
performing the Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations,
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards, and policies, as now existing or
hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.

3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing upon
execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event no later than December 31, 2017
(“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement. Time is of the essence in each and every
term of this Agreement.

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.

4.1. Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the Services, the City agrees to 
pay the Consultant as follows: 

4.1.1. __ __ An amount not to exceed $__________ calculated on the basis of the hourly rates 
set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached and incorporated herein by this reference; OR 

4.1.2. __X__ An amount not to exceed $462,162; OR 
4.1.3. __X__ Other [describe]: Additional allowed contingency of  up to 10% of said 

compensation to be paid upon the sole approval of the City. 
4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be made after the Services  

have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a form acceptable to the City, and the same 
is approved by the appropriate City representative.  Payment shall be made no later than ten (10) days after city 
council approval of the invoiced amount.   

4.3. First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the Consultant shall return to the 
City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification,” also known as IRS form W-9. 

ATTACHMENT 1

16 of 67



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 2 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

4.4. Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for the payment 
of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
5. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and documents that sufficiently 
and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the performance of the Services and maintain such 
accounting procedures and practices as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all 
funds paid pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review 
or audit by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by 
law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
6. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental 
entities, including but not limited to being registered to do business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of 
Covington business license.   The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy 
and accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other 
services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform its work in accordance 
with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of professional care, skill, diligence, and 
competence as are normally exercised by other members and/or firms of the profession in good standing working 
under the same or similar conditions and circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the 
Consultant under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance, 
and actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant.  The 
City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any costs or damages incurred by the City, 
or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of this 
Agreement or failure to meet the professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, 
drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy thereof.  Neither the 
City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 
7. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original records, reports, designs, files, documents, 
drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials prepared or 
produced by the Consultant in connection with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for 
which they were created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the City.  No confidential 
information obtained or created by the Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or party other than the City 
without the City’s prior written consent. 
 
8. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the Consultant that the 
Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay the 
Consultant sick leave, vacation pay, or any other benefit of employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and 
other taxes due.  Industrial or any other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether 
such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, sub-consultants, or representatives during the performance of this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer and employee or principal and agent between the 
parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the sole judgment of the means, mode, or manner of the actual 
performance of this Agreement.  The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
9. Indemnification.  The consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including attorney 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Should a court of competent 
jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages 
arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence 
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability hereunder, 
including the duty and cost to defend, shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of 

17 of 67



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 3 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has 
been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 
  
10. Insurance.  The Consultant shall at a minimum procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement 
the following insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees and in such forms and with such carriers who 
have a rating satisfactory to the City [required insurance coverage under this Agreement is indicated with a 
checkmark]: 
 

10.1. _X_ Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional  
acts, errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined single limits of liability 
not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in 
the course of operation under this Agreement. 
 

10.2. _X__ Employer Liability. Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts  
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington.  
 

10.3. _X__ Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance covering liability  
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and advertising injury and written on 
ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, 
$2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal injury or death, products liability, and property 
damage.  
 

10.4. _X__ Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned,  
hired, and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed 
to provide contractual liability coverage.   
      

10.5. Additional Requirements. 
 

10.5.1. The City shall be named as additional insured on all above required insurance policies,  
with the exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant participates in a 
state-run workers’ comp program.   
 

10.5.2. Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not 
less than A:VII.  
 

10.5.3. All required insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they  
may not be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," the Consultant shall be required 
to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date of this Agreement is actually 
terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the City.   
 

10.5.4. The Consultant shall provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the  
amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such above required 
coverage and, at the City's request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of 
payment of premiums or fees of such policies.   
 

10.6. The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required above shall not be construed to limit the  
liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity.  
 

10.7. The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies as required above shall be grounds for 
the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

18 of 67



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 4 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

11. Termination.   
 

11.1. This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by the City.   
 

11.2. Upon termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports, 
or other materials prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
(5) business days of the date of termination. Consultant shall be entitled to payment for all Services satisfactorily 
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination. 
 

11.3. This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies it may otherwise have  
for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement.  The remedies provided in this 
paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy the City may have at law or in equity. 
 
12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs, or activities, and all Consultant hiring and  
employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there shall be no discrimination by the Consultant 
or by the Consultant's employees, agents, subcontractors, or representatives against any person because of sex, age 
(except minimum age and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status, or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental, or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide occupational 
qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall apply, but not be limited to the 
following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 
RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or any other applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation regarding non-
discrimination. Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by the 
City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City agreements.   
 
13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement  
or subcontract any portion of the Services contemplated hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict of interest in performing  
any of the Services described herein.  It is recognized that the Consultant may or will be performing services during 
the Term for other parties; provided, however, that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or 
interfere with the Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately disclose such potential 
conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts of interest in favor of the City. 
 
15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant and designated by the City  
as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by 
the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  
16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire  
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, 
conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, negotiations, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto 
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
17. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing signed by all parties  
hereto.   
 
18. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence  
shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of 
the City's right to declare another breach or default. 
 
19. Successors.  Subject to any limiting provisions of this Agreement, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit  
of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors, and assigns. 
 
20. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity  

19 of 67



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 5 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the 
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this 
Agreement.  
 
21. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be  
deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first class or certified mail, with postage 
prepaid to the address included in the signature block below, or to such other person or place as one party shall 
furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, 
upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
22. Governing Law / Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of  
Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
23. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the substantially defaulting party  
agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or 
the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, arbitration, 
administrative, bankruptcy, and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
24. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of reference and shall be  
given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
25. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and the Consultant contained  
hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
26. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this Agreement is the City’s legal  
representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this 
transaction.  The Consultant further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel 
and has had an opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has consulted 
with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so. There shall be no 
presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 
27. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the Consultant represents  
and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the 
Consultant or the City. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON      CONSULTANT  
 
 
________________________________    MacLeod Reckord 
By: Regan Bolli      By:________________________________ 
Its: City Manager      Its: ________________________________ 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100     Address: ____________________________ 
Covington, WA  98042      ____________________________________ 
        
 
Attest:        Approved as to form: 
      
 
____________________________________   _________________________________  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk      Sara Springer, City Attorney 

20 of 67



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 1 of 6 

MacLeod Reckord 
Landscape Architecture    Planning    Urban Design 
110 Prefontaine Place South 
Suite 600 
Seattle, Washington 98104 
P 206-323-7919 
F 206-323-9242

ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

January 30, 2016 

Covington Community Park - Phase 2 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

During the term of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT (MacLeod Reckord) and identified 
SUBCONSULTANTS shall perform professional services in connection with the following 
project: 

Covington Community Park 
Phase 2 

The Scope of Work includes provision of professional design services for the continuation of 
future phases of Covington Community Park.  Services include site reconnaissance and 
verification of conditions, advance park design from 60% to 90% construction documents, and 
100% bid documents, construction administration, cost estimating, identify additive alternatives, 
and review/approval with City staff, Council, and Parks & Recreation Commission. 

Project Program Elements 
Program elements are as shown in the master plan, refined in the 60% Phase 2 submittal, and 
include those items not constructed in Phase 1.  The work to be performed in Phase 2 includes, 
but is not limited to, the following: surface parking for approximately 128 parking stalls; 
children’s play area (partial); fitness area with exercise stations; (1) tennis court; structures 
include concessions/comfort station, community stage with green roof, (1) large shelter, (2) 
small shelters; wetland mitigation; utility infrastructure; partial frontage improvements along 
180th Avenue SE; and soft surface and paved connections to existing trails. 

ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 
MacLeod Reckord will contract with sub-consultants involved in earlier phases of the project and 
as identified below.  Roles and responsibilities are as follows: 

• MacLeod Reckord (MR) – Project management, team coordination, landscape
architecture lead, document production and overall documentation coordination, project
oversight, and QA/QC.

• PACE Engineers (PACE) – Civil engineering, TESC, storm drainage and utility design
and documentation.

• MLA Engineering (MLA) – Structural engineering and documentation.
• ARC Architects (ARC) – Architectural planning, design, and documentation.
• ESA (ESA) – Environmental science, mitigation planning, design, and documentation.

ATTACHMENT 2

21 of 67



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 2 of 6 

• Stantec (formerly Candela Sparling) – Lighting design and electrical engineering and 
documentation. 

• Landau Associates (LA) – Geotechnical evaluation and engineering, update of existing 
geotech report, test pits as necessary for Phase 2 structures.   

 
GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 
 

1. Meetings and deliverables have been included in the Scope as outlined herein. 
2. Grading plans will be prepared, stamped, and signed by the landscape architect. 
3. Coordination with the Arts Commission has been included in the scope, however 

provision/design of stand-alone public art elements has not been specifically identified 
for this contract, and is not included in this scope of work. Based on upcoming 
discussion with City staff and Arts Commission, there may be project components 
included in the design that provide a public art benefit, but these will be integral with the 
functional design of the park elements. In addition, opportunities for stand-alone art 
placement will be identified in the plans. 

4. Permit application preparation for the following permits by the Consultant: Commercial 
Site Development, Commercial Building, Grading, Major Tree Clearing, Sign, and 
Transportation Concurrency. 

5. No traffic studies have been included in this scope. 
6. SEPA Checklist preparation by the Consultant.  Project description for the checklist will 

be provided by existing documents previously developed. No other additional technical 
memoranda or third-party discipline reports are anticipated to be required for this 
evaluation. City will be SEPA lead agency and will issue SEPA determination consistent 
with their SEPA rules. City will be responsible for publishing and circulating checklist and 
printing and installing the required SEPA notice.  

7. Significant changes to the layout/site plan after permit level plans have been prepared 
may require additional fees.   

8. Review comments from various City Departments/reviewers will be consolidated by the 
City into a single review document set for 90% Construction Documents.  Design team 
will provide a consolidated response to each set of comments. 

9. Wetland verification or additional delineation or mapping not anticipated. 
10. Survey as provided for Phase 1 and as modified by contractor’s as-built information.  No 

new survey is anticipated. 
11. Variance to the City of Covington code not anticipated. 
12. LEED™ Process is not included at this time, however sustainable building practices will 

be incorporated into site and building design as program and budget allow. 
13. Phase 2 Base Bid program is approx. $5.6 million MACC. 
14. Phase 2 Additive/Deduct Alternate program is approx. $1.0 million MACC.  
15. The Consultant will be taking the lead in pursuing environmental impact mitigation 

credits through the King County In-Lieu-Fee (ILF) program.  Advance payment for 
environmental impact mitigation through the ILF program is not guaranteed by the prime 
consultants or their sub-consultants to be accepted by the Corps or DOE. This program 
is new to King County and may not be accepted by the permit review agencies. 

 
SCHEDULE 
The scope of work is premised on a Notice-to-Proceed date of approximately February 10, 2016 
and construction completion in 2017.  Additional fees may be assessed if project extends into 
calendar year 2018 or later.   
 
Tentative schedule as follows (permit review/comment schedule dependent): 

• 90% PS&E completed July 1, 2016 

22 of 67



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 3 of 6 

• 100% PS&E completed October 2016 
• Construction anticipated early 2017 pending permit review/approval 

 
DESIGN STANDARDS/CRITERIA 

1. Electronic drawing format ACAD 2016, Civil 3D 2016, or as mutually agreed. 
2. Specification format for 90% and 100% submittal is MasterFormat Spec.  “Front-end” 

specifications including Division 0 shall be prepared by the City with support from the 
Consultant.  

3. International Building Code, 2012 edition, as amended by the State of Washington.   
4. City of Covington, Design and Construction Standards, July 2009. 
5. City of Covington, Stormwater Management Plan, March 2015. 
6. Covington Water District, Standards and Specifications, May 2012. 
7. WADOE, 2012 Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington. 
8. WSDOT, Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, English, 

current edition and Amendments. 
 
DELIVERABLES 
Drawing format for design plans will be ACAD version 2016, with Civil3D as appropriate to 
content.  Preliminary review and final submittal sets will be in PDF format and will include one 
full size and one half size (11” x 17”) bond hard copy.   
 
DOCUMENTS AND DATA TO BE FURNISHED BY CITY OF COVINGTON 
The following documents and data will be the responsibility of the City: 
 

 Resolution of easement/right-of-way needs due to proposed improvements (e.g. 
temporary construction easements, access easements, etc.) 

 
WORK TASKS 
 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Project management is incorporated in each task. 
 
TASK 1.  PHASE 2 PROJECT INITIATION AND DATA COLLECTION 
 
1.1 Coordination meeting with City staff to review Phase 2 scope and schedule and define 

Work Plan. 
1.2 Coordination meeting with Arts Commission and City staff to review potential for public 

art component(s) as part of Phase 2 development. 
1.3 Pre-Application meeting with City staff and invitees (by City) early in the process to 

address new scope of project and requirements for submittal for review and permits. 
1.4 Coordinate scope definition with City staff and sub-consultants. 
1.5 Update base mapping incorporating as-built conditions.  Identify areas that may need 

future survey. 
1.6 Site reconnaissance for purposes of additional inventory mapping and analysis. 
1.7 Coordination meeting with BPA to define mitigation project and confirm process and 

procedures. 
1.8 Sub-consultant Management:  Sub-consultant management shall include the preparation 

and execution of subcontracts with each Sub-consultant involved in the project.  The 
Consultant shall provide ongoing overview of progress, review of invoices, and overall 
coordination of Sub-consultant involved in the project. 

1.9 Code review.   
1.10 Project schedule. 

23 of 67



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 4 of 6 

1.11 Project management. 
 
Deliverables: Final scope of work and executed contract; Subcontracts for team; Project 

schedule; Invoicing; Updated base map and title block template; Meeting notes. 
Meetings: (1) City/team meetings (MR, PACE, ARC, ESA); (1) Team meeting (All); (1) 

City/Arts Commission meeting (MR, ARC); (1) Pre-Application meeting with 
invitees by City staff; (1) BPA meeting (MR, ESA). 

 
TASK 2.  UPDATE ILLUSTRATIVE PLAN  
 
2.1 Develop illustrative (color rendering) plan as follows: 

2.1.1 Plan of entire site showing existing conditions Phase 1 and proposed build-out 
conditions of Phase 2. 

2.2 Provide graphics in JPG format for inclusion in Powerpoint presentation and in PDF 
format for printing at 11X17”. 

2.3 Project management. 
 
Deliverables: Illustrative plan as noted above and delivered electronically. 
Meetings: None anticipated. 
 
TASK 3.  CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (90%) 
 
3.1 Advance 60% design reflecting adjustments for Phase 2 scope as defined by City staff, 

Parks and Recreation Commission, and City Council. Prepare 90% drawings to fix and 
describe the size, location, character, elevation, and material selection of Phase 2 
program elements noted above.  Plan set, all at a 90% construction document level, to 
include: 

3.2 Layout Plan(s) and Layout Enlargement(s) for all Phase 2 program elements. 
3.3 Grading Plan(s) and Grading Enlargement(s), reflecting strategy for future project 

phasing.    
3.4 Underdrainage Plan(s) for Play and Fitness Areas. 
3.5 Temporary erosion and sedimentation control (TESC) plan reflecting final adjustments to 

layout and grading (see attached PACE scope) 
3.6 Site stormwater conveyance, flow control, and water quality treatment facility design and 

engineering in accordance with City of Covington standards and requirements (see 
attached PACE scope). 

3.7 Site domestic water and sanitary sewer service facility design in accordance with 
Covington Water District, and Soos Creek Sewer District standards and requirements 
(see attached PACE scope). 

3.8 Planting Plan(s), Plant Schedule and Planting Details. 
3.9 Mitigation Planting Plan(s), Mitigation Planting Schedule and Mitigation Planting Details. 
3.10 Environmental Mitigation Draft and Final Report, Environmental Permitting and 

Documentation for Phase 2 and Phase 3 development impacts. (see attached ESA 
scope).   

3.11 Irrigation plan, equipment schedule, and details. 
3.12 Site construction details. 
3.13 Structural for site retaining walls and miscellaneous site structures (see attached MLA 

fee). 
3.14 Structural for Shelters and Concessions/Comfort Station (see attached MLA scope).  
3.15 Site electrical and lighting design for parking and general site (see attached Stantec 

scope for specific design, calculations, and details included). 

24 of 67



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 5 of 6 

3.16 Electrical and lighting design for Shelters and Concessions/Comfort Station (see 
attached Stantec scope). 

3.17 Architectural design and documentation of Concessions/Comfort Station, Stage Shelter 
with green roof, Large Shelter, and Standard Shelter (see attached ARC scope). 

3.18 Construction Document cost estimate based on 90% Construction Documents. 
3.19 Preliminary Specifications. 
3.20 Team coordination meeting. 
3.21 City/Team review meeting. 
3.22 QA/QC review and package assembly for delivery. 
3.23 JARPA Permit Plans & Figures – Grading, Planting and Vicinity Map including 

coordination.  
3.24 Provide documentation to support RCO grant application including: 

3.23.1 Re-format cost estimate to comply with RCO standards. 
3.23.2 Selected sheets from 90% plan set in JPG format. 

3.25 Coordination meeting with Arts Commission and City staff to review public art 
component(s) incorporated into the design. 

3.26 Present to P&R Commission and City Council for approval/adoption. 
3.27 Prepare permit applications as noted in General Project Assumptions and submit to City 

for review/comment and approval. 
3.28 Prepare and submit draft and final SEPA Checklist. 
3.29  Project management. 
 
Deliverables: (1) 90% Construction Document plan set (components as noted above); Final 

(Phase 2) cost estimate; 90% specifications; Wetland Mitigation Report for Phase 
2 – Draft (PDF format); Wetland Mitigation Report for Phase 2 – Final (4) bound 
copies); JARPA Draft Document for City review; JARPA Final Permit Package; 
Meeting agenda and minutes; Permit Applications as noted in General Project 
Assumptions; Draft and Final SEPA Checklist. 

 
Meetings: (1) City/Team meeting (MR); (1) Team meeting (MR, PACE, ARC, ESA); (1) 

City/Arts Commission meeting (MR, ARC). 
 (2) Public meetings (P&R Commission, City Council) (MR) 
 
TASK 4.  BID DOCUMENTS (100%) 
 
4.1 Finalize 90% Construction Documents to 100% incorporating (1) round of permit 

submission comments for Phase 2 scope. 
4.2 Finalize 90% Specifications to 100% incorporating (1) round of permit submission 

comments for Phase 2 scope. 
4.3 Finalize SWPPP (submit draft only to contractor / see attached PACE scope). 
4.4 Finalize and submit NPDES for NOI (see attached PACE scope). 
4.5 Update permit applications as required for final approval and resubmit to City. 
4.6 Team coordination meeting. 
4.7 Project management. 

 
Deliverables: (1) 100% Construction Document plan set (components as noted in Task 3); 

100% specifications; Meeting agenda and minutes; Resubmittal of Permit 
Application information as requested after permit review/comment.  

Meetings: (1) City/Team meeting (MR); (1) Team meeting (MR, PACE, ARC, ESA). 
(2) Public meetings (P&R Commission, City Council) (MR) 

 
TASK 5.  CONSTRUCTION BIDDING AND NEGOTIATION SERVICES 

25 of 67



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 6 of 6 

 
5.1 Contribution to up to two addenda during the Bidding phase is included in this task. 
5.2 Prepare for and attend Pre-Bid meeting and provide follow-up documentation as 

requested by City. 
5.3 Attend Bid Opening meeting. 
5.4 Review final bid submittals, check bidder qualifications and references of up to (3) top 

bidders, and provide report to City. 
 

Deliverables: Addenda (if necessary); Meeting agenda and minutes; Field questions from 
potential bidders.  

Meetings: (1) Pre-Bid meeting (MR); (1) Bid Opening meeting (MR). 
 
TASK 6.  CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES  
 
Not Included in Scope of Work at this time. 

 
TASK 7.  PROJECT MEETINGS AND AGENCY COORDINATION (See attached ESA Scope) 
 
7.1 Prepare for and attend up to (6) meetings for a period of 12 months from the time of 

notice to proceed is issued for the project.   
7.2 Project team coordination and communication during design and permitting. 
7.3 Coordination and communication with the Corps of Ecology during permit review 

including discussions regarding the proposal to purchase ILF credits for Phase 3 wetland 
impacts as a reduced impact calculation, in exchange for delaying impacts by 3-4 years. 

7.4 Availability for up to (24) hours of coordination to attend City Council meetings, public 
meetings, respond to public comment on City-issued permit decisions, and attend public 
hearings, if required.   

 
Deliverables: Formal communication of result regarding ILF mitigation credits to the City (ESA) 
Meetings:  (6) Meetings for a period of 12 months from notice to proceed (ESA); (2) 

Meetings (MR) 
 

26 of 67



Page 1 of 5  

City of Covington Community Park - Phase 2
Fee Summary (see attached derivations)
January 30, 2016

Task/Team

MacLeod 
Reckord PACE Civil Eng ESA Environ

Landau 
Associates 

Geotech
ARC Arch MLA

Stantec Site 
Lighting & 

Elec
Subtotal

1.0 Project Initiation & Data Collection 12,500.00       6,534.00         10,350.00       5,020.00         34,404.00       
2.0 Update Illustrative Plan 1,590.00         1,590.00         
3.0 Construction Documents (90%) 113,090.00     49,012.00       15,630.00       75,881.00       7,766.00         5,115.00         253,613.00     
4.0 Bid Documents (100%) 51,315.00       14,018.00       26,751.00       4,850.00         2,563.00         92,084.00       
5.0 Construction Bidding & Negotiation Servic 7,340.00         5,206.00         3,872.00         652.00            720.00            16,418.00       
6.0 Construction Administration Services (NIC -                 -                 
7.0 Project Meetings and Agency Coordination 3,440.00         8,965.00         12,405.00       

Subtotal 189,275.00     74,770.00       24,595.00       10,350.00       111,524.00     13,268.00       8,398.00         432,180.00     

Direct Expenses 2,100.00         1,438.00         700.00            1,492.00         427.00            50.00              6,207.00         

Admin. Mark-up (10%) 24,290.50

TOTAL 191,375          76,208            25,295            10,350            113,016          13,695            8,448              462,677.50     

27 of 67



Page 2 of 5  

City of Covington Community Park

Fee Derivation

PC PM PD DR AD SUBTOTAL
Task SCOPE OF WORK $160.00 $135.00 $100.00 $100.00 $95.00

1.0 PROJECT INITIATION & DATA COLLECTION
1.1 Coordination meeting with City 4 4 $1,180
1.2 Coordination meeting with Arts Commission 4 4 $1,180
1.3 Preapplication meeting with City and invitees; incl doc prep 4 6 2 $1,650
1.4 Coordinate scope definition with City and subs 2 4 $860
1.5 Update base mapping 2 12 $1,470
1.6 Site visit - inventory and mapping 4 4 2 $1,140
1.7 Coordination meeting with BPA 3 3 $885
1.8 Sub-Consultant management and contracting 2 4 6 $1,430
1.9 Code review 4 4 $940

1.10 Project Schedule 4 1 $635
1.11 Project Management 2 6 $1,130

Subtotal: 21 45 8 16 7 $12,500
2.0 UPDATE ILLUSTRATIVE PLAN
2.1 Rendering of Phase 1 and Phase 2 8 $800
2.2

         
format 2 $200

2.3 Project Management 2 2 $590
Subtotal: 2 2 10 0 0 $1,590

3.0 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS - 90%
3.1 Advance Design $0
3.2 Layout and Layout Enlargement Plans 3 $480

3.2a Cover Sheet 1 2 1 $430
3.2b K1.0 Existing Conditions Plan North 1 4 $535
3.2c K1.1 Existing Conditions Plan South 1 4 $535
3.2d K2.0 Site Plan 4 8 $1,340
3.2e K2.1 Key to Sheets 2 8 $1,070
3.2f L1.0 Layout Plan North 2 4 10 $1,670
3.2g L1.1 Layout Plan West 2 4 10 $1,670
3.2h L1.2 Layout Plan East 2 4 10 $1,670
3.2i L1.3 Layout Plan Southwest 2 4 10 $1,670
3.2j L1.4 Layout Plan Southeast 2 4 10 $1,670
3.2h L1.6 Area Enlargements - Play and Entry TerraceStage 2 4 16 $2,270
3.3 Grading and Grading Enlargement Plans 3 $480

3.3a L2.0 Grading Plan North 4 2 8 $1,540
3.3b L2.1 Grading Plan West 4 2 8 $1,540
3.3c L2.2 Grading Plan East 4 2 8 $1,540
3.3d L2.3 Grading Plan Southwest 4 2 8 $1,540
3.3e L2.4 Grading Plan Southeast 4 2 8 $1,540
3.3f

         
Stage 4 2 16 $2,340

3.4 L1.9 Underdrainage Plan - Play and Fitness Area 4 2 10 $1,740
3.5 TESC coordination with civil 1 2 4 $830
3.6 Site Stormwater coordination with civil 1 2 4 $830
3.7 Site Utility coordination with civil 1 2 4 $830
3.8 Planting and Planting Enlargement Plans 2 $320

3.8a L3.0 Planting Plan North 4 12 $1,740
3.8b L3.1 Planting Plan West 4 12 $1,740
3.8c L3.2 Planting Plan East 4 12 $1,740
3.8d L3.3 Planting Plan Southwest 4 12 $1,740
3.8e L3.4 Planting Plan Southeast 4 12 $1,740
3.8f L3.5 Plant Schedule 4 16 2 $2,330
3.8g L3.6 Plant Details 2 4 4 $1,070
3.9 Mitigation Planting and Mitigation Planting Enlargement Plans 4 $640

3.9a W3.0 Mitigation Planting Plan North 4 8 2 $1,540
3.9b W3.1 Mitigation Planting Plan West 4 8 2 $1,540
3.9c W3.2 Mitigation Planting Plan East 4 8 2 $1,540
3.9d W3.3 Mitigation Planting Plan Southwest 4 8 2 $1,540
3.9e W3.4 Mitigation Planting Plan Southeast 4 8 2 $1,540
3.9f W3.5 Mitigation Plant Schedule 4 16 2 $2,330
3.9g W3.6 Mitigation Plant Details 2 4 4 $1,070
3.10 Environmental Mitigation Report Coordination w/ ESA 2 6 $1,130

MacLeod ReckordJanuary 30, 2015

Phase 2

28 of 67



Page 3 of 5  

City of Covington Community Park

Fee Derivation

PC PM PD DR AD SUBTOTAL
Task SCOPE OF WORK $160.00 $135.00 $100.00 $100.00 $95.00

MacLeod ReckordJanuary 30, 2015

Phase 2

3.11 Irrigation Plan, Equipment Schedule and Details 2 2 1 $685
3.11a L4.0 Irrigation Plan North 16 2 $1,800
3.11b L4.1 Irrigation Plan West 16 2 $1,800
3.11c L4.2 Irrigation Plan East 16 2 $1,800
3.11d L4.4 Irrigation Plan Southeast 16 2 $1,800
3.11e L4.5 Irrigation Details 2 6 $800
3.12 Site Construction Details 3 $480

3.12a L5.0 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.12b L5.1 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.12c L5.2 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.12d L5.3 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.12e L5.4 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.12f L5.5 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.12g L5.7 Site Details 4 8 $1,340
3.13 Site structural coordination 2 4 $670
3.14 Building structural coordination 1 2 $335
3.15 Site electrical coordination 2 4 $670
3.16 Building MEP coordination 1 2 $335
3.17 Arch building coordination 4 8 $1,340
3.18 Cost Estimate 2 12 4 8 2 $3,330
3.19 Preliminary Specifications, including coord w/City on Div 0 4 24 4 16 $5,800
3.20 Team Coordination Meeting 2 2 $590
3.21 City Review Meeting 3 3 $885
3.22 QA/QC 8 8 $2,360

3.23a JARPA - Grading Figures 1 2 10 4 $1,810
3.23b JARPA - Planting Figures 1 2 4 10 4 $2,210
3.24 Documentation for RCO Grant 2 4 1 $960
3.25 Coordination meeting with Arts Commission 4 4 $1,180
3.26 Present to P&R Commission 4 $640
3.27 Permit Application and submittal (6 total) 4 16 16 $4,320
3.28 SEPA Checklist 16 48 8 12 $10,980
3.29 Project Management 8 $1,080

Subtotal: 73 286 264 307 60 $113,090
4.0 BID DOCUMENTS - 100%
4.1 Finalize Design $0
4.2 Layout and Layout Enlargement Plans 2 $320

4.2a Cover Sheet 1 1 $235
4.2b K1.0 Existing Conditions Plan North 1 2 $335
4.2c K1.1 Existing Conditions Plan South 1 2 $335
4.2d K2.0 Site Plan 2 4 $670
4.2e K2.1 Key to Sheets 1 4 $535
4.2f L1.0 Layout Plan North 1 2 4 $735
4.2g L1.1 Layout Plan West 1 2 4 $735
4.2h L1.2 Layout Plan East 1 2 4 $735
4.2i L1.3 Layout Plan Southwest 1 2 4 $735
4.2j L1.4 Layout Plan Southeast 1 2 4 $735
4.2h L1.6 Area Enlargements - Play and Entry TerraceStage 1 2 6 $935
4.3 Grading and Grading Enlargement Plans 2 $320

4.3a L2.0 Grading Plan North 1 2 4 $735
4.3b L2.1 Grading Plan West 1 2 4 $735
4.3c L2.2 Grading Plan East 1 2 4 $735
4.3d L2.3 Grading Plan Southwest 1 2 4 $735
4.3e L2.4 Grading Plan Southeast 1 2 4 $735
4.3f

         
Stage 1 2 4 $735

4.4 L1.9 Underdrainage Plan - Play and Fitness Area 1 2 4 $735
4.5 TESC coordination with civil 1 2 $335
4.6 Site Stormwater coordination with civil 1 2 $335
4.7 Site Utility coordination with civil 1 2 $335
4.8 Planting and Planting Enlargement Plans 2 $320

4.8a L3.0 Planting Plan North 1 6 $735

29 of 67



Page 4 of 5  

City of Covington Community Park

Fee Derivation

PC PM PD DR AD SUBTOTAL
Task SCOPE OF WORK $160.00 $135.00 $100.00 $100.00 $95.00

MacLeod ReckordJanuary 30, 2015

Phase 2

4.8b L3.1 Planting Plan West 1 6 $735
4.8c L3.2 Planting Plan East 1 6 $735
4.8d L3.3 Planting Plan Southwest 1 6 $735
4.8e L3.4 Planting Plan Southeast 1 6 $735
4.8f L3.5 Plant Schedule 4 6 2 $1,330
4.8g L3.6 Plant Details 1 2 2 $535
4.9 Mitigation Planting and Mitigation Planting Enlargement Plans 4 $640

4.9a W3.0 Mitigation Planting Plan North 1 6 2 $935
4.9b W3.1 Mitigation Planting Plan West 1 6 2 $935
4.9c W3.2 Mitigation Planting Plan East 1 6 2 $935
4.9d W3.3 Mitigation Planting Plan Southwest 1 6 2 $935
4.9e W3.4 Mitigation Planting Plan Southeast 1 6 2 $935
4.9f W3.5 Mitigation Plant Schedule 4 6 2 $1,330
4.9g W3.6 Mitigation Plant Details 1 4 2 $735
4.10 Irrigation Plan, Equipment Schedule and Details 1 1 1 $390

4.10a L4.0 Irrigation Plan North 8 1 $900
4.10b L4.1 Irrigation Plan West 8 1 $900
4.10c L4.2 Irrigation Plan East 8 1 $900
4.10d L4.4 Irrigation Plan Southeast 8 1 $900
4.10e L4.5 Irrigation Details 4 2 $600
4.11 Site Construction Details 2 $320

4.11a L5.0 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.11b L5.1 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.11c L5.2 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.11d L5.3 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.11e L5.4 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.11f L5.5 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.11g L5.7 Site Details 2 4 $670
4.12 Site structural coordination 1 2 $335
4.13 Building structural coordination 1 2 $335
4.14 Site electrical coordination 1 2 $335
4.15 Building MEP coordination 1 2 $335
4.16 Arch building coordination 1 2 $335
4.17 Cost Estimate 1 4 4 $1,100
4.18 Final Specifications 1 16 4 12 $3,860
4.19 Team Coordination Meeting 1 1 $295
4.20 City Review Meeting 3 3 $885
4.21 QA/QC 8 8 $2,360
4.22 Documentation for RCO Grant 2 2 $590
4.23 Present to P&R Commission 4 $640
4.24 Update information for Permit Applications and resubmittal 4 8 8 $2,480
4.25 Project Management 8 $1,080

Subtotal: 37 112 144 135 25 $51,315
5.0 BIDDING & AWARD
5.1 Prepare and submit Addenda (2) 4 8 4 8 4 $3,300
5.2 Pre-Bid meeting preparation and support 4 8 2 $1,910
5.3 Bid Opening meeting 4 $540
5.4 Bidder review and report 2 8 2 $1,590

Subtotal: 4 8 4 8 4 $7,340
6.0 CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT

Not included in Scope of Work at this time $0
Subtotal: 0 0 0 0 0 $0

7.0 PROJECT MEETINGS & AGENCY COORDINATION
7.1 Meetings with ESA to coordinate on site mitigation 2 4 $860
7.2 Design and Permitting - Project Team Coordination 2 4 $860
7.3 Design and Permitting - COE Coordination 2 4 $860
7.4 City Council/public/hearings or meetings in support of ESA 2 4 $860

Subtotal: 8 16 0 0 0 $3,440
145 469 430 466 96 $189,275

Direct Expenses: $2,100
Subtotal

30 of 67



Page 5 of 5  

City of Covington Community Park

Fee Derivation

PC PM PD DR AD SUBTOTAL
Task SCOPE OF WORK $160.00 $135.00 $100.00 $100.00 $95.00

MacLeod ReckordJanuary 30, 2015

Phase 2

SUBTOTAL: $191,375

31 of 67



January 15, 2016 

Ms. Connie Reckord 
MacLeod Reckord 
110 Prefontaine Place South 
Suite 600 
Seattle, Washington 98104 

Subject: Covington Community Park – Phase 2 Completion 
Site Engineering Proposal (v2) – P16-002 

Dear Ms. Reckord: 

PACE Engineers, Inc. would like to thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for 
providing Professional Site Engineering Design Services for the subject project.   

As we understand it, the overall scope of the project includes provision of professional 
engineering design services for the continuation of future phases of Covington Community Park. 
Services include site reconnaissance and verification of conditions, advance civil design from 
60% to 90% construction documents, and 100% bid documents, construction administration, cost 
estimating, and identification of additive alternates. 

Generally, the work to be performed in Phase 2 includes surface parking for approximately 128 
parking stalls, children’s play area, fitness area, (1) tennis court, a concessions/comfort station, a 
community stage, (1) large shelter, (2) small shelters, wetland mitigation, utility infrastructure, 
partial frontage improvements along 180th Avenue SE, and soft surface and paved connections 
to existing trails. 

The estimate presented in this proposal is based on a Scope of Work from your office dated 
January 5, 2016.  Any revision to the scope of work would require a review of the budgeted fees. 
The civil engineering scope of work as we envision it is to provide Construction Documents 
(90%), Bid Documents (100%), Bidding Support and Construction Administration.  A more 
detailed list of tasks and scope of work as we envision them is as follows: 

SITE ENGINEERING SCOPE OF WORK 
The Scope of Work as we understand it is as follows: 

Construction Document Phase (90%) 
Prepare a permit level site engineering plan set for submittal to the City of Covington, Covington 
Water District and Soos Creek Water & Sewer District. 

Tasks include the following: 

o Address major site engineering design issues

o Coordinate with Architect to determine the following:

o Fire Service, FDC, PIV and DCVA locations and configuration

o Sewer Service locations

32 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out



Ms. Connie Reckord 
MacLeod Reckord 
Covington Community Park Phase 2 Completion 
January 15, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
o Domestic Water Service locations 

o Attend (1) meeting with design team and City for purposes of reviewing scope, schedule and 
work plan 

o Attend (2) meetings with design team for purposes of coordinating site plan layout, permit 
level site engineering design, and utility design 

o Prepare Permit Level site engineering plans for review by the City of Covington, Covington 
Water District and Soos Creek Water & Sewer District 

o Prepare Permit Level site engineering calculations to support the design plans submitted to 
the reviewing agencies 

o Prepare one cycle of construction cost opinion based on 90% Construction Documents 

 
Deliverables include the following: 

o Permit Level TESC Plans to City of Covington standards 

o Permit Level Storm Drainage Conveyance, Flow Control and Storm Water Quality Treatment 
Plans to City of Covington standards 

o Permit Level Storm Drainage Report and Calculations to City of Covington standards 

o Permit Level Structural design and calculations of storm water flow control vault to City of 
Covington standards 

o Permit Level Road Frontage Improvement Plans to City of Covington standards 

o Permit Level On Site Water Plans to Covington Water District standards 

o Permit Level On Site Sewer Plans (including lift station for shelters as required) to Soos 
Creek Sewer District standards 

o Permit Level Details & Notes to reviewing agency standards 

o Site Engineering Construction Cost Opinion based on 90% plans 

o Preliminary Site Engineering Specifications 

 
Bid Documents Phase (100%) 
Provide final design of site engineering project elements and progress construction documents to 
100% level.    
 
Tasks include the following: 

o Provide final design plans and details for TESC, Storm Drainage, Road Frontage 
Improvements, Water, Sewer, and progress toward final approved Bid Documents 

o Attend (1) project team meeting to coordinate design 

o Provide revisions in response to (1) round of agency permit review comments 

o Provide final site engineering construction cost opinion based on 100% Bid Documents 

o Provide final site engineering related Book Specifications 

o Prepare and submit Notice of Intent (NOI) for NPDES permitting to Department of Ecology 

33 of 67



Ms. Connie Reckord 
MacLeod Reckord 
Covington Community Park Phase 2 Completion 
January 15, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 
Deliverables include the following: 

o Final Site Engineering Bid Documents as described above   

o Final Surface Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to DOE standards 

o Final 100% Site Engineering Construction Cost Opinion 

o Final Site Engineering Book Specifications 

 
Bidding Phase  
Provide bidding support relating to site engineering items during the bidding phase of the project. 
 These services would include preparation of up to (2) addenda to provide design clarifications of 
the site engineering portion of the work. 

 
Construction Administration Phase 
Provide Construction Administration relating to site engineering items during the construction 
phase of the project.  For budgeting purposes, we have assumed the following typical 
construction administration tasks. 

o Provide Construction Administration services that include material submittal review/approval, 
RFI response and attendance at up to (16) construction meetings or site visits to observe 
progress of construction relating to site engineering items 

o Provide (1) preliminary and (1) final punch list of site engineering items  

o Provide (1) final set of record drawings for site engineering plans based on contractor 
markups.  No field verification is included 

 
Site Engineering Fees Estimate 
 
We propose to provide our site engineering consulting services as broken out below.  Tasks are 
numbered to correspond with the tasks as outline in the overall project Scope of Work dated 
January 5, 2016 as presented from your office. 
 
Tasks 1 - 4 – Design services for PS&E preparation as described in work items 1-4 of your 
January 5, 2016 Scope of Work.  This task is presented as a fixed fee amount not to be 
exceeded without prior authorization for revision to scope of work items. 
 

Allocations by task:   Task 1 -  $  6,534.00 
 Task 2 -  $        0.00 

Task 3 -  $49,012.00 
Task 4 -  $14,018.00 

 $69,564.00 
 
Tasks 5 & 6 – Bidding and Construction Administration.  This includes work items 5 and 6 as 
described in your January 5, 2016 Scope of Work.  Due to potential unforeseen conditions and 
contractor variability these tasks are presented on a cost plus basis not to be exceeded without 
prior authorization for additional efforts beyond the budgeted amount.  (Please note that it is in 
the owner’s best interest to retain PACE for support services during construction.  These 
services are to observe compliance with design concepts and specifications and to allow design 

34 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out



Ms. Connie Reckord 
MacLeod Reckord 
Covington Community Park Phase 2 Completion 
January 15, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 
revisions in the event subsurface conditions differ from those anticipated prior to the start of 
construction.  PACE accepts no liability for any design revisions, design interpretations or 
answers to contractor questions to which PACE is not a party.) 
 

   Allocations by task:   Task 5 - $  5,206.00 
  Task 6 - $21,120.00 

    $26,326.00 
 

 Direct reimbursable costs (reproduction, courier service, etc.) estimated at 1.5% of contract –  
$  1,438.00 

                                
Total Site Engineering Fees          $97,328.00 

 

Scope Assumptions 

The above scope of work and related fee has been based on the following assumptions: 

1. The Owner will pay all necessary permit, review, submittal, and related fees.  MacLeod 
Reckord will provide permit plan submittals including printing of project documents and 
permit review coordination.  

2. MacLeod Reckord will provide site plan layout in Civil 3D format, indicating locations and 
critical dimensions for setbacks of proposed site facilities for use in preparation of the civil 
base.     

3. Geotechnical, wetland and traffic reports will be provided by other design disciplines. 

4. Any variance to City of Covington code would require additional review of engineering 
fees for additional efforts to obtain approval on a variance. 

5. Included in this fee proposal is coordination for a NPDES Construction Permit from 
WSDOE including a Notice of Intent (NOI) application and preparation of a separate 
Surface Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).  However, legal notice fees and 
erosion control inspection services such as turbidity and/pH monitoring during 
construction is not included in this fee proposal. 

6. No budget has been included in this fee proposal for plan revisions required to 
accommodate significant changes to the site plan after permit level plans have been 
prepared. 

7. Bidding is scheduled to occur in late 2016 with construction scheduled to begin in early 
2017.  This project has been budgeted based on 2016 billing rates.  If the project gets 
delayed and extends into 2018 or later, PACE reserves the right to renegotiate fees to 
accommodate increased billing rates.  

8. Construction inspection, survey layout, easement descriptions and exhibits for easement 
vacations or acquisitions are not included in this proposal.  We propose to supply a 
budget for these services as needed. 

9. Civil work stops at five feet from the building footprint.  Design work from that point will be 
coordinated with other disciplines. 

10. The site sanitary sewer system is anticipated to require design of a single lift station to 
force flow to the public sewer system, however, design of the storm water system is 
anticipated to be by gravity.  Any pump station design required for storm water facilities is 

35 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$76,208.



Ms. Connie Reckord 
MacLeod Reckord 
Covington Community Park Phase 2 Completion 
January 15, 2016 
Page 5 
 

 
not included in this proposal. 

11. With the exception of structural design for the storm water flow control vault, all site 
structural design is assumed to be by others.  No budget has been allocated to site 
structural design efforts for walls, bridges, miscellaneous site structures, etc. 

12. PACE assumes that MacLeod Reckord or others will make and coordinate all permit 
submittals, as this service has not been included in our scope of work. 

13. PACE assumes all grading design will be done by MacLeod Reckord.  PACE will review 
for general conformance to storm system and utility needs and will make 
recommendations for revision to accommodate the civil design, however, final grading will 
be provided by MacLeod Reckord for our use in design and site civil base sheet 
preparation. 

14. MacLeod Reckord will provide all site horizontal control plans. 

15. Any field survey required will be additional to the contract amount.  No budget has been 
allocated for field survey efforts. 

 
In summary, we have developed a scope of work and budget based on our present knowledge of 
the proposed project.  This budget does not include any major revisions to the scope of work, 
any off site studies or analysis, construction surveying or construction inspection.  We have tried 
to cover all aspects of the proposed project; however, if you feel that additional areas of work 
require our attention, if you have any questions or if you desire additional information please do 
not hesitate to contact us.   Should the scope of services change as a result of the formal review 
process, site plan changes or other unforeseen circumstances, we will inform you immediately as 
to the impact on this proposal.    
 
We are pleased to have this opportunity to submit a proposal to accomplish the Site Engineering 
tasks and services for the subject project, and look forward to working with you on this project.  
Again, please let us know if you require any additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
PACE Engineers, Inc. 

 
 
Philip D. Cheesman, PE 

Vice President 

36 of 67



Exhibit A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
ESA 

 
Covington 180th/240th Park: Phase 2 – 90% Design 

January 2016 
 
The following is a Scope of Work to conduct environmental permitting and documentation in 
support of Phase 2 of the Covington 180th/240th Park in the City of Covington.  The City has 
directed MacLeod Reckord and its sub-consultants to develop and acquire environmental permits 
for 90% design of Phase 2 of the Park Master Plan. Only Phase 2 will be designed, mitigation 
requirements for Phases 3 are not included in this task. This scope covers tasks anticipated to 
occur from January through December 2016.  Work occurring beyond this time frame may 
require additional funding and contract revision. 
 
ESA previously conducted wetland delineations on the park property and produced a wetland 
report describing the wetlands and appropriate regulatory issues. The wetland delineations were 
reviewed and approved by the Corps of Engineers in 2010. Wetland mitigation was designed, 
permitted, and constructed for Phase 1 of the park Master Plan. Conceptual on-site mitigation 
plans for the remainder of the park Master Plan (now Phases 2 and 3) were discussed in the 
wetland mitigation report: Covington Community Park Critical Areas Report and Final 

Mitigation Plan (ESA 2011).  
 
  
TASK 1: Mitigation Report for 90% Design of Phase 2   
 
Draft and Final Phase 2 Mitigation Report 

ESA will prepare draft and final mitigation report based on the level of environmental impacts 
associated with the wetland fill required for construction of Phase 2.  ESA will use the Phase 1 
mitigation plan report as a template for the Phase 2 mitigation report based on 90% park design. 
Mitigation design drawings, plans and details will be prepared by MacLeod Reckord and will 
include on-site wetland creation and enhancement as desired by City of Covington for all 
wetlands to be impacted in Phase 2.  Based upon the pre-application meeting held in October 
2014 with the Corps of Engineers and Ecology, this scope assumes all mitigation will occur 
onsite to satisfy state and federal permitting authorities. 
 
The mitigation plan report shall include identification of site-specific performance criteria and 
standards for success and a proposed monitoring and maintenance plan per CMC 18.65.340.  The 
draft plan will be submitted to the Corps of Engineers and Department of Ecology pursuant to 
the application for the Section 404 Nationwide Permit and the Ecology 401 water quality 
certification, and to the City of Covington for development and land use permit applications.   
 
The final mitigation report will be completed based on comment provided by MacLeod Reckord 
and City staff. The mitigation plan will be the document of record for the environmental permits 
for this project.   

37 of 67



Exhibit A  Page 2 of 4 
ESA SOW – January 2016 
Covington 240th/180th Park – Phase 2 90% Design 
 
 
Task 1 Deliverables 
 Wetland Mitigation Report for Phase 2 – Draft (PDF format) 
 Wetland Mitigation Report for Phase 2 – Final (4 bound copies) 
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 

1. The Wetland Delineation completed and approved by the Corps in 2010 will be 
acceptable for Phase 2 design and permitting. If the Corps requires more recent site 
review of the wetland boundaries, a contract modification would be necessary. 

2. Phase 2 park design is anticipated to fill less than 0.5 acres of wetland and will not 
include impacts to Little Soos Creek, 

3. ESA will provide environmental review of the proposed mitigation design drawings and 
provide written comments to MacLeod Reckord regarding plant species, grading, 
hydrological considerations, and consistency with local, state and federal permit 
requirements. 

4. ESA anticipates one round of review for the Draft Report. All draft materials will be 
submitted for review electronically in either their native file format or as PDF files.  

5. It is our understanding that the City prefers use of on-site wetland mitigation rather than 
use of the King County ILF program which has recently been approved as a formal 
wetland mitigation bank. Use of the ILF program or other off-site mitigation is not 
included in this scope or work. Although, mitigation through ILF or Mitigation Banks 
is the Corps first preference for mitigation for wetland impacts that are unavoidable, 
we understand from the pre-application meeting that on-site mitigation will be 
considered for this project. 

6. On-site wetland mitigation will be acceptable to the Corps and Ecology. 
7. Mitigation design, including grading, planting plans and specifications will be provided 

by MacLeod Reckord. 
 
 
TASK 2: Phase 2 Environmental Permitting and Documentation 
 

The MacLeod Reckord team will prepare 90% design drawings and Plans, Specifications, and 
Estimates (PSE) for Phase 2 of the planned Covington 240th/180th Park.  Phase 2 elements 
include a parking lot in the southeast corner of the park as identified in the Master Plan adopted 
February 10, 2009.  The project is expected to impact less than 0.5-acre of wetland and will not 
affect Little Soos Creek.  Under Task 2, ESA will prepare environmental permits in support of 
state and federal permitting as described below. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, it is assumed that all other necessary building, construction, and other 
environmental permit applications would be prepared by others. 
 
Joint Aquatic Resources Permit Application (JARPA) 

38 of 67



Exhibit A  Page 3 of 4 
ESA SOW – January 2016 
Covington 240th/180th Park – Phase 2 90% Design 
 
Based on the amount of anticipated wetland impact (less than 0.5-acre), a Section 404 
Nationwide Permit from the Corps of Engineers is anticipated for the project.  It is anticipated 
that the project will be authorized under Nationwide Permit 42 – Recreational Facilities.    
The JARPA form is a joint application form that will be prepared in support of a Corps of 
Engineers Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit, Ecology 401 Water Quality Certification and 
Coastal Zone Consistency Determination, and Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(WDFW) Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). ESA will coordinate with MacLeod Reckord 
during JARPA figure preparations. ESA will assemble JARPA materials for submittal by the 
City to the Corps of Engineers, and Ecology.   
 
Task 2 Deliverables 
 JARPA – Draft document for City review  
 JARPA – Final permit package 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 

 
 It is assumed that MacLeod Reckord will prepare Corps of Engineers JARPA figures for 

the Phase 2 project based on 90% design information. 
 It is anticipated that from 4 to 6 figures will be necessary for the JARPA submittal. 
 JARPA materials shall also require 90% design drawings and narrative descriptions of 

the proposed project work provided by MacLeod Reckord and others.   
 On-site wetland mitigation will be approved by the Corps and Ecology as an acceptable 

alternative to use of the King County ILF program. 
 Wetland impacts will be permitted by the Corps under Nationwide Permit 42, and an 

Individual Permit will not be necessary. 
 
TASK 3: Project Meetings and Agency Coordination 
 
ESA staff shall prepare for and attend up to 6 meetings for the project for a period of 12 months 
from the time a notice to proceed is issued for the project.  Project team coordination and 
communication during design and permitting is also included in this task.  Coordination and 
communication with the Corps and Ecology during permit review is also anticipated. Included in 
the coordination with the Corps could be discussions regarding the proposal to buy ILF credits 
for Phase 3 wetland impacts at a reduced impact calculation, in exchange for delaying impacts by 
3-4 years. 
 
ESA staff will be available for up to 24 hours of coordination to attend City Council meetings, 
public meetings, respond to public comment on City-issued permit decisions, and attend public 
hearings, if required. 
 
 

39 of 67



Exhibit A  Page 4 of 4 
ESA SOW – January 2016 
Covington 240th/180th Park – Phase 2 90% Design 
 
GENERAL SCOPE ASSUMPTIONS 

1. The Wetland Report, Biological Assessment, and Cultural Resources report provided 
for Phase 1 of the project will be sufficient for Phase 2 and will not need revision or 
updating. 

2. MacLeod Reckord will provide all applicable engineering descriptions, specifications 
and drawings and other pertinent design information during the course of the project.  
This includes design drawings for JARPA figures and related materials. 

3. MacLeod Reckord will forward any agency comments to ESA in a timely manner. 
4. All draft materials will be submitted for review electronically in either their native 

file format or as PDF files.  
5. ESA shall finalize and submit all permit applications and required supporting 

materials to MacLeod Reckord and the City, which will submit deliverables to the 
regulatory agencies. 

6. ESA shall submit the number of copies of applications and supporting documentation 
identified on the application forms, plus two additional copies for the project files.  
The City shall be responsible for additional copies, if needed.  The City shall be 
responsible for distributing permit materials and the publication of any required 
notifications. 

7.  The City will sign and be responsible for delivering all permit applications. 
8. As determined by the City, wetland mitigation will be constructed onsite and within 

identified park boundaries.  
9. No additional environmental services such as SEPA or NEPA related tasks or local 

permitting are included in this scope of work.  
10. Documentation or support for a Corps of Engineers Individual Permit is not included 

in this scope or work. 
11. Additional permits, special studies, or technical evaluations may be required to 

construct this project. ESA shall not be responsible for permits, technical studies or 
applications not specifically identified as deliverables in this scope of work. 

 
 

40 of 67



Exhibit B
Covington 180th/240th Park_Phase 2 60% Mitigation Design
MacLeod Reckord
ESA 
Based on Scope of Work Dated:  January 2016

Labor Category Director I

Managing 

Associate II

Technical 

Assoc. I

Senior 

Associate II Associate II

Senior 

Admin / 

Graphics

Admin / 

Graphics Clerical Total

Rate 170.00$          145.00$       140.00$      125.00$      90.00$            95.00$        80.00$        65.00$        

Task 1
Task 1 Phase 2 Mitigation Design Report

Compensatory Mitigation Plan - Draft and Final 2 16 14 8 30 6 8 2 86.00                        

Subtotal hours 2 16 14 8 30 6 8 2 86.00                        

Subtotal labor 340.00$          2,320.00$    1,960.00$   1,000.00$   2,700.00$       570.00$      640.00$      130.00$      9,660.00$                 

Reimbersables 200.00$                    

Subtotal Task 1 9,860.00$                 

Task 2
Task 2 Phase 2 Environmental Permitting and Documentation

60% JARPA - Draft and Final 1 8 8 20 4 2 43.00                        

Narratives of Project Work - Draft and Final 1 4 8 13.00                        

Subtotal hours 2 8 0 12 28 0 4 2 56.00                        

Subtotal labor 340.00$          1,160.00$    -$            1,500.00$   2,520.00$       -$            320.00$      130.00$      5,970.00$                 

Reimbersables 200.00$                    

Subtotal Task 2 6,170.00$                 

Task 3
Task 3 Project Meetings and Agency Coordination

Coordination Meetings (6) 24 8 12 6 1 51.00                        

City of Covington (pre application) (completed) -                           

City Council and Coordination and Hearings 16 16.00                        

Subtotal hours 0 40 8 12 0 0 6 1 67.00                        

Subtotal labor -$                5,800.00$    1,120.00$   1,500.00$   -$               -$            480.00$      65.00$        8,965.00$                 

Reimbersables 300.00$                    

Subtotal Task 3 9,265.00$                 

Total Estimate 25,295.00$            

Page 1 of 1

41 of 67



 

1115 West Bay Drive NW, Suite 201  •  Olympia, Washington 98502  •  (360) 791-3178  •  www.landauinc.com 

January 11, 2016 
 
Michael Lipko, PLA, ASLA, PDC 
MacLeod Reckord PLLC 
110 Prefontaine Place South, Suite 600 
Seattle, WA 98104 

Attn: Mr. Michael Lipko 

Transmitted via email to: michaell@macleodreckord.com 

Re: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services 
 Proposed Covington Park Phases 2 and 3 
 Covington, Washington 

Dear Mr. Lipko: 

In accordance with your request, we are submitting this proposal to provide geotechnical services for 

the above-referenced project. The purpose of our services will be to complete geotechnical 

subsurface explorations and update our previous geotechnical recommendations for the project. We 

prepared a geotechnical engineering report for an earlier phase of the project in 2011. 

Project Understanding 

Our project understanding is based on our review of the site layout as shown on the project phasing 

diagram dated January 5, 2016. Since the time our previous test pit explorations were completed, 

plans for the park development have become more extensive. Small structures are being considered 

at additional locations. Also, some existing wetland areas will be developed. Our previous subsurface 

explorations were not completed in wetlands. 

Scope of Services 

To characterize subsurface soil and groundwater conditions, we propose to excavate 6 to 8 test pits 

(maximum 1-day effort) at previously unexplored areas of the site. Test pits will be excavated in the 

vicinity of proposed structures and in wetland areas to check for soft or otherwise unsuitable soils 

that are subject to settle when subjected to new loads. The test pits will be excavated to depths of 

about 10 to 12 feet (or refusal) below existing site grades using a small-track, hydraulic excavator 

under subcontract to Landau Associates, Inc. (LAI). LAI will contact the “Call before you dig…” 

underground utility locate service to check if any known active underground utilities are on site. In 

addition, we will have a private utility locating firm check the exploration locations for possible 

conflicts with underground utilities. We have assumed in this proposal that access and any necessary 

rights-of-entry to the subject property to complete the test pits will be provided in a timely manner.  

42 of 67



Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services  Landau Associates 

January 11, 2015  2 

A geotechnical engineer or geologist from LAI will monitor the explorations, obtain representative 

bulk soil samples from the test pits, and prepare field logs of conditions encountered in the 

explorations. Representative bulk soil samples obtained from the test pits will be returned to our 

laboratory for further classification and testing. Geotechnical laboratory testing will consist of up to 

10 natural moisture content determinations and 4 grain size analyses for classification purposes.  

Soil samples obtained from the explorations will be held in our laboratory for 30 days after submittal 

of the final report. After that date, the soil samples will be disposed of unless arrangements are made 

to retain them. Groundwater levels (if encountered) in the test pits will be noted at the time of 

exploration. Upon completion of sampling and logging, the test pits will be backfilled with excavated 

soil and the area around each test pit will be restored as best as possible with the equipment on hand.  

We will prepare and submit a revised geotechnical report summarizing the results of the geotechnical 

investigation and geotechnical conclusions and recommendation for design of the facility. The revised 

report will include: 

 A site map showing the approximate locations of the explorations.  

 Descriptive logs of the explorations and a summary of surface and subsurface soil and 
groundwater conditions encountered in the explorations. 

 Results of the geotechnical laboratory analyses. 

 Recommendations for site grading, including clearing, grubbing and stripping; earthwork 
requirements; suitability of onsite soil for reuse, fill placement and compaction criteria, 
pavement subgrade preparation, and design pavement sections for parking/drive areas. 

 Settlement estimates for any aerial fills placed over existing wetlands. We will also provide 
estimates for the thickness of overexcavation required to remove settlement-prone soils from 
development areas. 

 Recommendations for foundation support of the structures, including seismic design 
considerations per 2012 International Building Code, foundation preparation, maximum 
allowable soil bearing pressure, minimum footing sizes (continuous and column footings), 
minimum depth of burial, and resistance to lateral loads. 

 Estimated short-term and long-term settlement of foundations. 

 Recommended static and dynamic lateral earth pressures on below-grade structures, such as 
vaults. 

 Geotechnical recommendations for installation of new site utilities including trench 
excavation and retention, pipe foundation support, pipe bedding and initial backfill materials, 
an evaluation of the suitability of excavated soil for use as trench backfill, and trench backfill 
compaction criteria. 

 Site and foundation drainage considerations. 

We have included in our budget time for project management, civil and structural plan review, and 

one project meeting. 

43 of 67



Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services  Landau Associates 

January 11, 2015  3 

Terms and Conditions 

Our services will be provided on a time-and-expense basis in accordance with the attached 2016 

Compensation Schedule and General Conditions, which are hereby made part of this agreement. The 

estimated fee for the services described above will be $10,350, as summarized in the following table. 

Table 1. Field Explorations 

Task Cost 

Trackhoe Subcontractor $ 1,500 

Utility Locate Services (APS) $250 

Landau Associates Personnel $2,800 

Geotechnical Laboratory Testing $800 

Geotechnical Engineering Analyses and Report $5,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE $ 10,350 

 

If project requirements change or unforeseen conditions are encountered that require services 

beyond the scope outlined above, we will bring these to your attention and seek approval for 

modification to the scope of services and budget, as appropriate. Please provide us with written 

authorization, by signing in the space provided on the next page and returning one signed original of 

this proposal, or by your preferred method. 

Schedule 

We anticipate that we can complete the subsurface explorations within about 3 weeks of 

authorization to proceed and permission to access our exploration areas. If permits are required for 

our explorations in wetland areas, we assume that the permits will be completed by others. 

Closure 

Landau Associates appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward to 

providing geotechnical engineering services for this project. If any questions arise regarding this 

proposal, please call us at (360) 791-3178. 

LANDAU ASSOCIATES, INC.  
 
 
 
Calvin McCaughan, PE 
Principal 
 
CAM/bar 
2016-3077 
[X:\C_COVINGTON\2016-01_COVINGTON PARK\COVINGTON PARK_PRO_PCREDLINES.DOCX]  

 
Attachments: 2016 Compensation Schedule 
  General Conditions 

44 of 67



Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services  Landau Associates 

January 11, 2015  4 

AUTHORIZATION 

The scope of services and contractual conditions as described in this proposal and its attachments are 

accepted and Landau Associates, Inc. is authorized to proceed. 

By    
 Signature*  Printed 

For    
 Firm*  Date 

*Name of person with contractual authority and firm responsible for payment of Landau Associates, 

Inc. billing. 

MacLeod Reckord PLLC 
Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services/Proposed Covington Park Phases 2 and 3 
Covington, Washington 
 

45 of 67



COMPENSATION SCHEDULE – 2016 

T: Templates\Contracts\Compensation Schedule 2016A  Landau Associates 

Personnel Labor  Hourly Rate

Senior Principal  250 

Principal  225 

Senior Associate  205 

Associate  185 

Senior  165 

Senior Project  150 

Project  137 

GIS Analyst  137 

Senior Staff / CAD Designer  121 

Staff / Senior Technician II  107 

CAD / GIS Technician  107 

Project Coordinator  98 

Assistant / Senior Technician I  94 

Technician  78 

Support Staff  67 

 
 
Expert professional testimony in court, deposition, declaration, arbitration, or public testimony is charged at 
1.5 times the hourly rate. 

Rates apply to all labor, including overtime. 

Equipment 

Field, laboratory, and office equipment used in the direct performance of authorized work is charged at unit rates. 
A rate schedule will be provided on request. 

Subcontractor Services and Other Expenses 

Subcontractor billing and other project expenses incurred in the direct performance of authorized routine services 
will normally be charged at a rate of cost plus a twelve percent (12%) handling charge. A higher handling charge for 
technical subconsultants and for high‐risk field operations may be negotiated on an individual project basis; 
similarly, a lower handling charge may be negotiated on projects requiring disproportionally high subconsultant 
involvement. 

Invoices 

Invoices for Landau Associates’ services will be issued monthly. Interest of 1½ percent per month (but not 
exceeding the maximum rate allowable by law) will be payable on any amounts not paid within 30 days. 

Term 

Unless otherwise agreed, Landau Associates reserves the right to make reasonable adjustments to our compensation 
rates over time (e.g., long‐term continuing projects). 

46 of 67



GENERAL CONDITIONS 

T: Templates\Contracts\General Conditions  Landau Associates 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED – Landau Associates agrees to provide Client, for Client’s sole benefit and exclusive use, the consulting services 
identified in Landau Associates’ proposal. This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than Client and Landau Associates. 
 
CLIENT FURNISHED INFORMATION – Client shall provide to Landau Associates information regarding the property location, property limits, the 
location of any buried utilities or structures, and any requirements for entry or work permits, security clearances, licenses or any other required 
permissions. Landau Associates shall not be liable for damage or injury arising from damage to subterranean structures (pipes, tanks, pipelines, 
etc.) that are not identified by Client. If the property is not owned by Client, Client shall obtain right‐of‐entry for the purpose of our services. 
 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS – Unless otherwise agreed, all logs, notes, calculations, reports and other documents prepared by Landau Associates 
are the property of Landau Associates. Client is responsible for appropriate use of the information and recommendations contained in Landau 
Associates’ reports and other written correspondence. Any and all such information and recommendations are provided for and are relevant to 
specific projects, as identified; any reuse of such information for extensions of a project, or disregard for or deviation from Landau Associates’ 
recommendations or for any other project shall be at Client’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Landau Associates. 
 
STANDARD OF CARE AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – Landau Associates’ services will be performed with the degree of skill and diligence normally 
employed by engineering professionals performing similar services in the Northwest at the time services are performed. No other warranty or 
representation, either express or implied, is included or intended in our proposals, contracts, reports, and communications. 
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client expressly agrees to limit any and all claims of Client, including but not limited to claims alleging 
negligence, breach of contract, or breach of warranty against Landau Associates and/or its employees, for all losses of any kind, including economic 
loss, to an amount not to exceed the total fee paid under this Agreement or $50,000, whichever is greater. If Client desires a higher limit, Landau 
Associates may agree to an increased limitation for additional consideration. In the event Client makes a claim against Landau Associates, at law or 
otherwise, for alleged negligence, error, omission, breach, or other act arising out of the performance of professional services, and Client fails to 
prove such claim, Client shall pay all costs incurred by Landau Associates in defending itself against the claim. 
 
CLIENT INDEMNIFICATION – Client acknowledges that Landau Associates is not responsible for the creation or presence of contamination or 
pollution, if any, at the property. Client agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Landau Associates and any of its officers and employees 
from and against any claim, suit, action, or liability due to or related to contamination conditions at the property except to the extent such claim, 
suit, action, or liability is caused by the negligence of Landau Associates. For the purposes of this clause, contamination conditions shall mean the 
actual or alleged existence, discharge, release, or escape of any irritant, pollutant, contaminant, or hazardous substance into or upon the 
atmosphere, land, groundwater, surface water, or sediment of or near the property. Landau Associates will promptly notify Client of contamination 
conditions, if identified. 
 
SITE SUPERVISION – Landau Associates has no overall supervisory authority or actual and/or direct responsibility for the specific working 
conditions at the site and/or for any hazards resulting from the actions of any trade contractor. Unless expressly provided in the scope of services, 
Landau Associates has no duty to inspect, supervise, note, correct, or report any health or safety deficiencies of Client, contractors, or other 
entities or persons at the project site not employed or subcontracted by Landau Associates. 
 
PAYMENT – Invoices for Landau Associates’ services will be issued monthly, payable upon receipt.  Interest of 1½ percent per month (but not 
exceeding the maximum rate allowable by law) will be payable on any amounts not paid within 30 days, payment thereafter to be applied first to 
accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid amount. Any attorney’s fees or other costs incurred by Landau Associates in collecting any 
delinquent amount shall be paid by Client. 
 
SAMPLE RETENTION – Unless other arrangements are made, uncontaminated samples will be discarded in accordance with applicable regulations 
30 days after testing is complete. Contaminated or hazardous materials samples not destroyed by testing remain the property of Client and will be 
returned to Client or project site for disposition as directed by Client. 
 
SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION – If Client requests suspension or termination of our services prior to completion, Landau Associates reserves the 
right to complete such analyses and records as are necessary to place the files in order, and, when necessary to protect our professional 
reputation, to complete a report on the services provided to date. Client shall compensate Landau Associates for personnel time and all reasonable 
expenses at current rates required to accomplish such closing. 
 
TIME BAR TO LEGAL ACTION – The parties agree that all legal actions by either party against the other concerning the services provided under this 
Agreement shall be barred two (2) years after the completion of services by Landau Associates. 
 
SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL – In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid and unenforceable by a decision of a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall be valid and binding. All terms of this Agreement allocating or limiting liability shall survive 
the completion of the services hereunder and the termination of this Agreement. 
 
PRECEDENCE – These general conditions shall take precedence over any inconsistent or contradictory provisions contained in any proposal, 
contract, purchase order, notice to proceed, or like document regarding Landau Associates’ services. 

47 of 67



  

COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK from 60% to 100%
CONCESSIONS, COMFORT STATION AND SHELTERS
ARC ARCHITECTS
1/26/2016

ARCHITECTURAL FEE   
Architectural  $75,105 ARC Architects
Structural $37,219 1.10 $40,941 MLA Engineering
Mechanical $18,190 1.10 $20,009 Sazan Group
Electrical $9,999 1.10 $10,999 Stantec
Estimator $5,000 1.10 $5,500 Roen and Associates

FEE LESS REIMBURSABLES $152,554

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
ARC $250
Structural $1,342
Electrical $0
Mechanical $300
Subtotal $1,892

FEE WITH REIMBURSABLES $154,446

TASK 1.  
PH. 2 PROJECT INITIATION & DATA COLLECTION

part pm design remarks
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 1 8  contracts, billings, schedule, filing

MEETINGS    
Pre-Application Meeting w/ City 2 3 (1) meeting at City

Arts Commission Meeting 1 2 Assume on same day as Pre-App

CODE REVIEW 1
Zoning 4

Building 4  

TEAM COORDINATION 1
Landscape 2

Civil 1
Structural 1

Mechanical 1  
Electrical 1
Estimator 1

TOTAL DIRECT IN-HOUSE HOURS 6 24 4
DIRECT HOURLY RATE $180 $150 $85
TOTAL DIRECT  SALARY EXPENSE $1,080 $3,600 $340
TASK 1 SUB-TOTAL, ARCHITECTURAL $5,020

CMP_Phase2_FeeProposal_REVISED_0126 2016.xls 1

48 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$30,963.$12,305.$  7,804.

connier
Typewritten Text
$49,845.$34,059.$13,536.$  8,584.

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$111,524.

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$942.

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$1,492.

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$113,016.



  

TASK 2.  
UPDATE ILLUSTRATIVE PLAN 

part pm design remarks
NO WORK UNDER THIS TASK  assume by MR

TOTAL DIRECT IN-HOUSE HOURS 0 0 0
DIRECT HOURLY RATE $180 $150 $85
TOTAL DIRECT  SALARY EXPENSE $0 $0 $0
TASK 2 SUB-TOTAL, ARCHITECTURAL $0

TASK 3.  
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (90%)

part pm design remarks
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 1 4 2  billings, schedule, filing

MEETINGS     
Design Team Meeting 2 3 (1) meeting at MR office

Arts Commission @ 90% 3 (1) meeting at City

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN/DOCUMENTATION
Concessions/Comfort Station 2

Plan 1 4
 Exterior Elevations 1 4  

Building Sections 1 4 (3); RRs, entry, concessions
Roof Plan  1 2  

 Interior Elevations  2 12
Details  16 32

Rendering assume none

Stage Shelter 1
Plan 1 2  

 Exterior Elevations 1 4  
Building Sections 1 4

Roof Plan  1 2  
Details 8 16

Rendering assume none

Large Shelter 1  
Plan 1 2

 Exterior Elevations  1 4
Building Sections 1 4

Roof Plan  1 2  
Details 4 8 assume shared with stage

Rendering assume none

Standard Shelter 1  
Plan 1 2

 Exterior Elevations  1 4
Building Sections 1 4

Roof Plan  1 2  
Details 4 8 assume shared with stage

Rendering assume none

Other Sheets 1
Title Sheet by MR

Code Sheet 2 4

CMP_Phase2_FeeProposal_REVISED_0126 2016.xls 2

49 of 67



  

Schedules / Abbreviations 1 2  
Specifications 24 8 8  

TEAM COORDINATION 1
Landscape 2 1

Civil 1 1
Structural 1 4

Mechanical 1 2  
Electrical 1 2
Estimator 2 2

COLOR MATERIALS BOARD 2 4 8

CHECKING/PICKUPS 8 2 6

TOTAL DIRECT IN-HOUSE HOURS 44 85 168
DIRECT HOURLY RATE $180 $150 $85
TOTAL DIRECT  SALARY EXPENSE $7,920 $12,750 $14,280
TASK 3 SUB-TOTAL, ARCHITECTURAL $34,950

TASK 4.  
BID DOCUMENTS (100%)

part pm design remarks
MEETINGS    

Design Team Meeting 2 3 (1) meeting at MR office

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 1 1 1  billings, schedule, filing

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN/DOCUMENTATION
Concessions/Comfort Station 1 2 8 final refinements, QA/QC

Stage Shelter 1 2 8 final refinements, QA/QC

Large Shelter 1 1 2 final refinements, QA/QC

Standard Shelter 1 1 2 final refinements, QA/QC

Specifications 1 1 2 final refinements, QA/QC

TEAM COORDINATION 1
Landscape 2 1

Civil 1 1
Structural 1 1

Mechanical 1 1  
Electrical 1 1
Estimator 2 1

CHECKING/PICKUPS 1 2 4

TOTAL DIRECT IN-HOUSE HOURS 10 21 33
DIRECT HOURLY RATE $180 $150 $85
TOTAL DIRECT  SALARY EXPENSE $1,800 $3,150 $2,805
TASK 4 SUB-TOTAL, ARCHITECTURAL $7,755

CMP_Phase2_FeeProposal_REVISED_0126 2016.xls 3

50 of 67



  

TASK 5.  
BIDDING & NEGOTIATION SERVICES

part pm design remarks
BID SERVICES 1   

Pre-Bid Walkthrough 3 3
Questions 1 1 1
Addenda 1 2 4 assume 1

TOTAL DIRECT IN-HOUSE HOURS 3 6 8
DIRECT HOURLY RATE $180 $150 $85
TOTAL DIRECT  SALARY EXPENSE $540 $900 $680
TASK 5 SUB-TOTAL, ARCHITECTURAL $2,120

TASK 6.  
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 

part pm design remarks
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 2 4 2  billings, schedule, filing

CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION    
Pre-Con Meeting 2 assume 1

Field Meetings 4 56 8 assume 8
Punchlist 1 2 6

Backpunch assume not required

OFFICE ADMINISTRATION
Pay Requests by MR

RFI's/Clarifications 2 32 32  
Shop Drawing Review 4 16 24 assume 8-12 sections

TOTAL DIRECT IN-HOUSE HOURS 13 112 72
DIRECT HOURLY RATE $180 $150 $85
TOTAL DIRECT  SALARY EXPENSE $2,340 $16,800 $6,120
TASK 6 SUB-TOTAL, ARCHITECTURAL $25,260

TOTAL OF TASKS 1-6, FROM 60% TO 100%, ARCHITECTURAL $75,105

CMP_Phase2_FeeProposal_REVISED_0126 2016.xls 4

51 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
1-5

connier
Typewritten Text
$49,845.

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$0.



Consulting Structural Engineers

Exhibit A: Estimate of Professional Services  

 

Client: MacLeod-Reckord Schematic  documents emailed to MLA Engineering on Jan 7, 2016

Project: Covington Park - site features

Estimate Date: January 10, 2016 Approx.
3.00%

Principal 
Engineer, 
P.E., S.E.

 
Project 

Engineer, 
P.E., S.E. Engineer

Sr CAD 
Drafter

Sr Admin 
Assistant

MLA 
Hours MLA Fee

In-house 
expenses Total %

$168 $125 $115 $90 $64

1.0 2.0 3 $418
1.0 4.0 5 $668

2.0 10.0 12 $1,400
2.0 24.0 22.0 1.0 49 $5,054

2.0 10.0 34.0 22.0 1.0 69 $7,540 $226 $7,766 42.5%

1.0 1 $125
4.0 4 $500

2.0 2.0 16.0 8.0 28 $3,146
1.0 4.0 3.0 8 $938
3.0 11.0 16.0 11.0 0.0 41 $4,709 $141 $4,850 26.5%

3.0 1.0 4 $465
1.0 1 $168
1.0 3.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 5 $633 $19 $652 3.6%

1.0 7.0 8 $1,043
8.0 8 $1,000

1.0 3.0 14.0 18 $2,153
1.0 1 $168  

1.0 2.0 3 $295
1.0 1.0 2 $179

3.0 18.0 16.0 2.0 1.0 40 $4,838 $145 $4,983 27.2%
9.0 42.0 66.0 36.0 2.0 155.0 $17,720 $572 $18,292 100.0%

  
Reimbursable expense estimate Deliverables:
    Plotting  $4/dwg 1) Stamped structural dwgs: notes, plans & details - AutoCAD  
    Plotting  Half-size  $1.00/dwg 2) Stamped structural calculations
    Photos:  $1 per sheet  3) Edited CSI specifications
    Courier:  Cost x 1.1 4) Field observations and summary memos
    Printing  Cost x 1.1 5) Reviewed shop drawings and submittals 
    Photo copies  $.15- $.75 (varies w/ size or color)       
    Postage Cost x 1.1  
Total reimbursables $572

TOTAL Estimate of Fees + Reimbursable expenses             = $18,292
 

   4. Final observations and memo of observations

Task 4 Subtotal 

   6. Closeout

Task 6: Services during Construction (CA)

   2. On-site observations - 3 trips
   3. Shop drawing and submittal review

   5. As-built drawings

Task 6 Subtotal 

Task 5 Subtotal 

Task 3 Subtotal 

   1Respond to RFI’s

Task 5: Bid assistance
   1. Respond to bidder questions; provide clarifications and addendum as required.
   2. Review bid results and review with Owner 

   3. Provide drawings & specifications
   4. Respond to Owner comments & provide documents for Building Official review

Basis of est: 

TASKS & FEES

Key assumptions: Structures include one large shelter, two small shelters

   2. Meetings and coordination

Task 3: 90% Constructio/Permit review Documents
   1. Construction cost estimate

   3. Provide final calculations for design 
   4. Provide drawings & specifications

Task 4: 100% Construction/Bid Documents
   1. Construction cost estimate

   2. Meetings and coordination

52 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$427    $13,268.

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$13,695.



COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK - SITE LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL

Consulting services will include design documentation
for incoming electrical service, parking\pathway lighting
and site\building power distribution.

TASK 3
PM PM ENGINEER ENGINEER PROD PROD EXPENSES

60%-90% Construction Documents HOURS RATE HOURS RATE HOURS RATE TOTAL

Set up base drawings provided by client 0.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 2.00 $98.00 $0.00 $336.00
Site Electrical Investigation 3.00 $171.00 0.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $50.00 $563.00
Lighting equipment selection 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $311.00
Lighting calculations 0.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $280.00
Site power and lighting layouts 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 2.00 $98.00 $0.00 $507.00
Electrical circuiting and cabling design 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $409.00
Voltage drop and short circuit analysis 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $311.00
Develop lighting details 1.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $549.00
Develop electrical details 1.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $549.00
PSE service application and plans 2.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 2.00 $98.00 $0.00 $818.00
Specifications 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $311.00
Estimate of Probable Cost 1.00 $171.00 0.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $171.00

 SUB-TOTAL 13.00 14.00 9.00 50.00 5,115.00

TASK 4
PM PM ENGINEER ENGINEER PROD PROD EXPENSES

Bid Documents HOURS RATE HOURS RATE HOURS RATE TOTAL

Base drawing update 0.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $238.00
Final Lighting Plans 1.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 2.00 $98.00 $0.00 $647.00
Final Power Plans 1.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 2.00 $98.00 $0.00 $647.00
Final Details 1.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $549.00
Specifications 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $311.00
Estimate of Probable Cost 1.00 $171.00 0.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $171.00

 SUB-TOTAL 5.00 8.00 6.00 0.00 2,563.00

53 of 67



COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK - SITE LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL

TASK 5
PM PM ENGINEER ENGINEER PROD PROD EXPENSES

Construction Bidding HOURS RATE HOURS RATE HOURS RATE TOTAL

Prepare Addenda 2.00 $171.00 2.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $720.00

SUB-TOTAL 2.00 2.00 1.00 $0.00 $720.00

TASK 6
PM PM ENGINEER ENGINEER PROD PROD EXPENSES

Construction Administration HOURS RATE HOURS RATE HOURS RATE TOTAL

Three construction site observations 6.00 $171.00 3.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $150.00 $1,596.00
Answer rfi's, submittals, modifications 4.00 $171.00 4.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $0.00 $1,244.00
Punch List 2.00 $171.00 0.00 $140.00 0.00 $98.00 $50.00 $392.00
Record drawings and project closeout 1.00 $171.00 1.00 $140.00 1.00 $98.00 $0.00 $409.00

CA SUB-TOTAL 13.00 8.00 1.00 $200.00 $3,641.00

TOTALS 33.00 32.00 17.00 250.00 12,039.00

54 of 67

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Cross-Out

connier
Typewritten Text
$8,398.00

connier
Typewritten Text
$50.00

connier
Typewritten Text
      total  $8,448.00



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: February 9, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE 

EXTENDING THE MORATORIUM ON MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
PRODUCTION AND PROCESSING FACILITIES, DISPENSARIES, 
COLLECTIVE GARDENS, AND RELATED BUSINESSES UNTIL JULY 1, 2016 

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed ordinance extending said medical marijuana moratorium until July 1, 2016 
 

PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda bill action is to hold a public hearing to allow public testimony and 
take action extending the moratorium on medical marijuana production and processing facilities, 
dispensaries, and collective gardens until July 1, 2016, unless earlier terminated.  
 
A. Moratorium History 
In August 2011, the city council established a twelve-month moratorium on the establishment, 
location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, 
production facilities, processing facilities, and collective gardens. That moratorium was extended 
for an additional six months in August 2012, February 2013, August 2013, February 2014, 
August 2014, February 2015, and August 2015. This proposed ordinance would further extend 
the moratorium until the state’s new medical and recreational marijuana regulations go into 
effect on July 1, 2016, unless earlier terminated.   
 
B. New State Marijuana Regulations (Both Medical and Recreational) 
As previously briefed to council, the state legislature passed SSSB 5052, the Cannabis Patient 
Protection Act (the “Act”), and Governor Inslee signed it into law, with partial vetoes, in April 
2015. In July 2015, the state legislature and governor also passed and signed into law SHB 2136, 
which amended portions of SB 5052. 
 
As a general overview, the Act:  
 

• Establishes the state Liquor Control Board as the regulatory agency overseeing medical 
marijuana and renames the board the Liquor and Cannabis Board (LCB); 
 

• Provides guidance for rules and regulation of medical marijuana, which will be regulated 
through the same structure as provided through I502; 
 

55 of 67



• Requires marijuana retail businesses to apply for a medical marijuana endorsement 
through the LCB if they desire to sell medical marijuana in addition to recreational 
marijuana. Accordingly, the LCB must reopen the license period for retail stores and 
allow for additional licenses to be issued to address the needs of the medical market; 
 

• Repeals medical marijuana collective gardens, replacing them with medical marijuana 
personal grows and cooperatives. Qualified patients may grow up to fifteen plants in their 
home. Up to four qualifying patients or designated providers may form a medical 
marijuana cooperative, which is permitted to grow up to sixty plants at a cooperative 
location; and 
 

• Gives authority to cities, towns, counties, and other municipalities to create and enforce 
civil penalties for the growing or processing of marijuana and for keeping marijuana 
plants beyond or otherwise not in compliance with the rules and regulations of 
cooperatives. 
 

Portions of the Act were enacted as of July 1, 2015, and the remaining portions of the Act will go 
into effect as of July 1, 2016—notably, non-state-licensed marijuana establishments and current 
recreational marijuana businesses will be required to obtain a state endorsement if offering 
medical marijuana and collective gardens will no longer be legal.    
 
C. Status of Permanent Regulations 
At the council’s October 27, 2015, regular council meeting, staff presented to council detailed 
information regarding the new legislation passed by the state legislature, and the council 
provided staff with specific policy decisions to direct staff’s development of permanent 
marijuana regulations for the city.  Staff will be completing the draft permanent regulations by 
the beginning of April 2016, after which staff will present the proposed permanent regulations to 
the planning commission for their review and recommendations. Staff will then forward the 
proposed permanent regulations to the state Department of Commerce for their review and 
comment. Staff with then bring the proposed permanent regulations back to the council for a 
public hearing and final adoption before the new state laws go into effect on July 1, 2016.  
 
D. Recommendation on Extension of Moratorium Until July 1, 2016 
It is necessary for council to extend the current moratorium on medical marijuana production, 
processing facilities, dispensaries, collective gardens, and related businesses until July 1, 2016, 
to allow for the above noted consideration and adoption of permanent regulations and to prevent 
the establish or citing of the stated medical marijuana uses prior to the city’s permanent 
regulations and new state laws going into effect on July 1, 2016.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
1. Let the moratorium expire. This option is not recommended by staff. If the moratorium 

expires without any further action by the city, there will be no local regulations in place to 
govern the placement and operation of any medical marijuana businesses, facilities, uses, or 
collective gardens. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 

56 of 67



 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution        Motion        Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _____________seconds, to 
pass an ordinance, in substantial form as that attached hereto, to extend the 
moratorium on medical marijuana collective gardens, production and processing 
facilities, dispensaries, and related businesses until July 1, 2016.  

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; Community Development Director 

57 of 67



ORDINANCE NO. 06-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, TO EXTEND THE 
MORATORIUM ON THE ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, 
OPERATION, LICENSING, MAINTENANCE, OR 
CONTINUATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION FACILITIES, PROCESSING 
FACILITIES, COLLECTIVE GARDENS, AND RELATED 
BUSINESSES WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON UNTIL 
JULY 1, 2016; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
MORATORIUM; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT 
SUPPORTING THE MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE NOs. 08-11, 12-12, 01-13, 07-13, 05-14, 10-14;  02-
15, and 06-15, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2011, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance No. 08-11, 
which declared an emergency necessitating the immediate imposition of a moratorium on the 
establishment, location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana 
dispensaries, production facilities, processing facilities, and collective gardens, as more 
particularly described in Ordinance No. 08-11; and 

WHEREAS, on July 24, 2012, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance No. 12-12, 
which provided for a six-month extension of the moratorium on the establishment, location, 
operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production 
facilities, processing facilities, collective gardens, or any business or organization offering any 
type of service relating to collective gardens or to producing, processing, or dispensing medical 
marijuana; and 

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2013, August 27, 2013, February 25, 2014, August 12, 2014, 
February 10, 2015, and August 11, 2015, the Covington City Council passed Ordinance Nos. 01-
13, 07-13, 05-14, 10-14, 02-15, and 06-15 respectively, which provided for additional six-month 
extensions of said moratorium; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 69.51A of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), creates an 
affirmative defense for qualifying patients to the charge of possession of marijuana, and provides 
that such patients can, as an alternative to growing marijuana for their own use, designate a 
designated provider who can provide medical marijuana to only one patient at a time; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Health has opined that “the law [current 
Chapter 69.51A RCW] does not allow dispensaries” and that it is “not legal to buy or sell 
marijuana,” but the Department of Health has left enforcement of the law to local officials; and 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Attorneys for Washington State have reiterated that marijuana 
possession, production, and distribution is a federal criminal offense and that local officials and 
employees would not be immune to prosecution under the federal Controlled Substances Act, 21 

ATTACHMENT 1

58 of 67



 
 

U.S.C.§801 et seq., even if state law decriminalized the use, possession, and production of 
marijuana for medical purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the state legislature passed SB 5052, the Cannabis Patient Protection Act (the 
“Act”) and the governor signed it into law in April 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Act establishes the state Liquor Control Board, now Liquor and Cannabis 

Board, as the oversight body for medical marijuana, provides guidance and rules for the regulation 
and licensing of medical marijuana, and eliminates collective gardens to be replaced with medical 
marijuana collectives and personal grows, effective July 1, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, the significant portions of the Act that affect the city’s zoning and licensing 

regulations does not go into effect until July 1, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Covington currently has no licensing, zoning, or land use 

requirements that address collective gardens for medical marijuana production or that address 
medical marijuana production, processing, or dispensing facilities, should such dispensaries be 
determined to be authorized; and 

 
WHEREAS, unregulated medical marijuana uses are anticipated to have negative 

secondary impacts including a possible increase of criminal activity in the area of collective 
gardens, a possible increase in illegal drug activity in the area of the collective gardens, possible 
illegal distribution of medical marijuana, and may present health and safety concerns related to the 
handling of chemicals used in the growing and processing of marijuana, the ventilation of 
collective gardens and related air quality issues, and the electrical wiring of collective garden 
facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Covington City Council established a moratorium to prevent the location 

and vesting of any medical marijuana collective gardens or medical marijuana production, 
processing, or dispensing facilities within the city while the city lacks the necessary tools to ensure 
regulation of the negative secondary impacts and health and safety concerns and to maintain the 
status quo while legal, political, and policy and city code impacts are studied and considered; and 

 
WHEREAS, city staff requires time to analyze all provisions of the Act to recommend and 

develop a system of permanent regulations for all marijuana establishments and uses within the 
city; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city must extend the moratorium on the establishment, location, licensing, 

maintenance, or continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production facilities, processing 
facilities, collective gardens, and related businesses until July 1, 2016, to act as a stop-gap measure 
to provide an opportunity for staff to harmonize and incorporate the provisions of the Act with the 
city’s current interim regulations for recreational marijuana and to avoid the unregulated 
establishment of collective gardens within the city with rights contrary to and inconsistent with 
any revision the city may make to its regulatory scheme as a result of the city’s continued 
consideration of this matter; and  

 

59 of 67



 
 

WHEREAS, on February 9, 2016, the city council held a properly noticed public hearing 
on the moratorium as required by RCW 35A.63.220, and on that date accepted testimony from all 
members of the public desiring to be heard on the subject; and 

 
WHEREAS, based upon the public testimony received on February 9, 2016, and based 

upon additional materials presented by city staff, a moratorium of limited duration is in the public 
interest; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 9, 2016, the city council considered the foregoing facts, 

materials, and testimony, and deliberated on the issue of whether to continue the moratorium; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 authorizes the city council to adopt land use moratoria; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 9, 2016, the city’s SEPA Responsible Official determined that 

the moratorium is exempt from SEPA under RCW 43.21.030(2) (c); 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Adoption of Defined Terms. For the purpose of this ordinance, the definitions 
of “Medical marijuana dispensary”, “Medical marijuana processing facility”, “Medical marijuana 
production facility”, and “Medical marijuana collective garden” in Ordinance No. 08-11 are 
hereby adopted by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. Findings of Fact. In accordance with RCW 35A.63.220, which requires the city 

council to adopt findings of fact justifying the adoption of moratoria, the “WHEREAS” clauses 
set forth above are hereby adopted as the city council’s findings of fact in support of the 
moratorium imposed by this ordinance and are by this reference incorporated herein as if set forth 
in their entirety.  

 
Section 3. Moratorium Extension. This six-month moratorium established by Ordinance 

No. 06-15 shall not lapse and shall be extended to be effective until July 1, 2016, unless earlier 
terminated.  
 

Section 4. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state or 
federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 5. Corrections. Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk is authorized 

to make any necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of 
scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any 
reference thereto.  

 

60 of 67



 
 

Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 
the city and shall take full force and effect on the date listed below. 

 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, 

at a regular meeting thereof on the 9th day of February, 2016, and signed in authentication of its 
passage.  
       CITY OF COVINGTON 

      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

 
PUBLISHED:  February 12, 2016 
EFFECTIVE:   February 19, 2016 

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

61 of 67



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 9, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENTS TO OPENINGS ON THE PARKS & RECREATION 

COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
         
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:     
The City received four applications for consideration of three openings on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission.  All applicants are adults eligible to serve the three-year term.  All 
applicants reside inside the Covington city limits.  The Council Sub Committee interviewed all 
four applicants on January 26, 2016.  The interview recording was provided to the full Council. 
 
Name of Applicant             Resides  
Justin Reed        inside city limits 
Laura Morrissey (reapplying to Position No. 5)   inside city limits 
Troy McIntyre (reapplying to Position No. 7)   inside city limits 
Melissa Edlund-Oakley      inside city limits 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
The Parks and Recreation Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City 
Council, two of which may be youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 years 
at the start of their term.  Up to two of the members may reside outside the city, but those outside 
must reside within a three-mile radius of the city limits. The remaining five members must reside 
or work within the city limits. 
 
Each position shall have a term of office for three years; provided, however, any member 
designated as a youth member shall serve only for one year. If a youth member is appointed, the 
Council shall fill the position for the remaining years, if any, at the end of the youth term. Terms 
shall commence on February 1st and expire on January 31st of the respective years. When a 
vacancy occurs, the replacement shall be for the remainder of the unexpired term. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open positions. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ______________ to fill Position No. 5 on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission with a term expiring January 31, 2019. 

62 of 67



 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ______________ to fill Position No. 6 on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission with a term expiring January 31, 2019. 
 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ______________ to fill Position No. 7 on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission with a term expiring January 31, 2019. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager, Parks & Recreation Director, City Clerk  
 

63 of 67



 
 
 
 
 

DISCUSS COMMISSIONER CONDUCT 
 

64 of 67



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  February 9, 2016 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, February 23, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65 of 67



 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, February 23, 2016                                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• The Work of the Washington State Housing Finance Commission (Rich Zwicker, Sr. Policy Analyst) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 12, 2016 Regular Meeting, January 26, 2016 Regular Meeting; January 30, 2016 

Annual Strategic Workshop; February 9, 2016 Special Meeting – Study Session; and February 9, 2016 
Regular Meeting (Scott) 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-3. Approve Contract with SBS Legal Services for City Attorney Services (Scott) 
C-4. Approve Tetra Tech Amendment (Vondran) 
C-5. Approve Interlocal Agreement with City of Kent for CIP 1127 (Vondran) 
C-6. Approve Franchise Agreement with Zayo for Telecommunications (Vondran) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  February 11 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  February 17 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  February 18 meeting; February 4 meeting canceled. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  January 30 special meeting and February 11 regular meeting. 
• PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  January 27 meeting. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  January 28 open house.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Ordinance to Repeal and Replace Portions of Title 14 in the Covington Municipal Code 

(Mueller) 
 

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

Draft 
as of 2/5/2016 

 

66 of 67

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 

 

67 of 67


	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 02-09-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet Blue Sheet - CCP Ph2 Contract for Park Design, MacLeod-Reckord  2016-02-09
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment 1 - M-R Contract 2016-02-10
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT
	ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES
	CITY OF COVINGTON      CONSULTANT
	By: Regan Bolli      By:________________________________

	Consent C-2 Attachment 2 - CCP Phase 2 Scope and Fees
	2016.01.10 Exhibit A- MLA fee est - Covington Site.pdf
	General Form for Est of Serv

	2016-01-25 Phase 2 Scope of Work.pdf
	Landscape Architecture    Planning    Urban Design
	Covington Community Park - Phase 2
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	Covington Community Park
	Phase 2

	ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES
	GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS
	SCHEDULE

	DESIGN STANDARDS/CRITERIA
	DELIVERABLES
	DOCUMENTS AND DATA TO BE FURNISHED BY CITY OF COVINGTON
	WORK TASKS

	TASK 2.  UPDATE ILLUSTRATIVE PLAN



	Item 1 Blue Sheet Extending Moratorium on Medical Marijuana_2-9-16_SBSEDIT
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ord_Extension of Med Marijuana Moratorium to 1JULY2016_2-9-16_SBSEDIT
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 02-09-2016 Appointments to P&R Commission Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet DISCUSS COMMISSION CONDUCT
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	02-23-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, February 23, 2016                                                                                                City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

	02-09-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Tuesday, February 9, 2016                                                                                                   City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




